

KATHY HOCHUL Governor ROSSANA ROSADO Commissioner

SNUG Trauma Training

RFP DCJS-2025-03

Attachments

Table of Contents

Attachment 1A: Complete Proposal Requirement Checklist	1
Attachment A: Firm Information Form and Attestation	2
Attachment B: Qualifying Attestation and Client Reference Form	4
Attachment C: Technical Proposal Response Form	6
Attachment E: Financial Response Form	10
Attachment F: Formal Offer Letter	11
Attachment G: Questions Template	14
Appendix A: STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NEW YORK STATE CONTRACTS	15
Appendix C: ENCOURAGING USE OF NEW YORK STATE BUSINESSES IN CONTRACT PERFORMANCE.	. 233
Appendix D: Non-Collusive Bidding Certification	. 244
Appendix E: DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES	. 266
Appendix F: Formal Offer Letter	.300
Attachment 1: Offerer's Affirmation of Understanding of and Agreement pursuant to State Finance Law §139-j and §139-j (6) (b)	` '
Attachment 2: Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations	. 333
Form 4: Offerer's Certification of Compliance With State Finance Law §139-k(5)	. 355
Appendix I: MWBE Requirements and Equal Employment Opportunities	. 366
Appendix M: EO 177 Certification	39
Appendix P: Sexual Harassment Prevention Certification	.400
Appendix Q: Certification Under Executive Order No. 16 Prohibiting State Agencies and Authorities from Contracting with Businesses Conducting Business in Russia	.411
Appendix R: Workplace and Gender Based Violence Prevention Certification	.422
Exhibit A: DCJS Contract Award Protest Procedure	.433

Attachment 1A: COMPLETE PROPOSAL REQUIREMENT CHECKLIST

RFP# DCJS 2025-03 SNUG Trauma Training

A successful proposal will be submitted in the packages and order listed below. Each Proposal Package must be submitted separately.

TEOLINICAL PROPOSAL		
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL	T = ==	
Volume 1 – Technical	RFP Section	Included w/ Submission (to be checked by Bidder)
Attachment B: Qualifying Attestation and Client Reference Form	4.2, 5.2	
Attachment C: Technical Proposal Response Form	5.1	
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS		
Volume 2 – Administrative	RFP Section	Included w/ Submission (to be checked by Bidder)
Attachment F: Formal Offer Letter	7.1	
Attachment 1A: Complete Proposal Requirement Checklist	N/A	
Attachment A: Firm Information Form and Attestation	4.1	
Offerer's Proposed Extraneous terms, if applicable	7.6	
Request for Exemption from Disclosure, if applicable	7.7	
Appendix A: Standard Clauses for New York State Contracts	9.16.5	
Appendix C: Encouraging Use of New York State Businesses in Contract Performance	7.4	
Appendix D: Non-Collusive Bidding Certification	7.2	
Appendix E: Procurement Lobbying Guidelines	7.3	
Appendix F: Attachment 1 - Offerer's Affirmation of Understanding of and Agreement pursuant to State Finance Law §139-j (3) and §139-j (6) (b)	7.3	
Appendix F: Attachment 2 - Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations	7.3	
Appendix F: Form 4- Offerer's Certification of Compliance With State Finance Law §139-k(5)	7.3	
Appendix M: EO 177 Certification	7.8	
Appendix P: Sexual Harassment Prevention Certification	7.9	
Appendix Q: EO 16 Certification	7.10	
Appendix R: Workplace and Gender Based Violence Prevention Certification	7.11	
FINANCIAL PROPOSAL		
Volume 3 – Cost	RFP Section	Included w/ Submission (to be checked by Bidder)
Attachment E: Financial Response Form	6.0	

Attachment A: Firm Information Form and Attestation

Infor	mati	on Regard	ling the Firr	n							
Firm	Nam	e:									
Addre	ess:										
Phon	ie #:				We	b Addre	ess:				
Fede	ral ID	number _									
Prim	ary C	Contact Co	ncerning tl	ne Proposa	ıl Info	ormatio	n				
Name	e:							_			
Phon	ie #:										
E-Ma	ail Ad	dress:									
	ding	the informa					oonsibility for in this desig				
Attestations	3										
The Bidder a Attestation Requiremen	- Atta	achment A	(Firm Info	rmation Fo	rm a	nd Atte	station) and				
	1.		r can respoi n of informa		nd ef	fectively	to the requ	ests by [OCJS for	the purp	oses of
			Yes			No					
		The Bidde York.	r shall repre	sent and wa	arran	t, that it i	is authorized	d to do b	usiness i	in the Sta	te of New
			Yes			No					
	 	has comple and examir Bidder will,	eted, obtained nations required in order to pot ts imposed	d, or perforn red by any g erform said :	ned a joveri Servid	ll registra nmental a ces durin	f the date of sations, filings authority for ag the term of said Contrac	, approva the provi f the Con	als, autho sion of th tract, if a	orizations, ne Service: ny, compl	consents, s and that y with any
			Yes			No					

			ble, Bidder/ future chan			•		ce in the eve	ent that there	is any
			Yes			No				
			Attestation: utlined in RF					nt that it will o	complete deli	verables
			Yes			No				
	By signing th	nis lett	er, I certify	that I am	authori	zed to b	ind the firm	contractually	y.	
	Name of Authorized Representati				Firm:					
										
	Title/Position Representative									
	. ispisosinaliv	u								
Signat	ure:						Date:			

Attachment B: Qualifying Attestation and Client Reference Form

Qualifying Attestation: In accordance with the qualifying criteria outlined in RFP **Section 4.2.**, your organization must meet the following requirements:

Mandatory Requirement	Yes	No
Has the Bidder developed trauma training curricula and provided related training to a minimum of two (2) clients within the last five (5) years from the date of issuance of the RFP. For the purpose of this bid, a client means a public or private entity.		
The Bidder shall represent and warrant that it possesses adequate staffing resources for successful completion of this contract.		

The client references listed below will be provided a questionnaire to verify **Section 4.2**. The references which qualify the Bidder will also be used for scoring in relation to **Section 5.2**.

Client #1 Client Reference Form: In the accordance with Firm Name: response requirement for Client Refences in RFP Client Contact Name: Section 4.2. Provide two Phone #: (2) client references as described in Section 4.2 for E-mail address: whom the Bidder developed trauma training curricula and Alternate Contact Name: provided related training within the last five (5) years from Alternate Phone #: the date of issuance of the RFP. Alternate e-mail address: **NOTE:** The Bidder may Client #2 submit the information of a Firm Name: third reference that meets the Qualifying Address: Requirement 4.2 as an alternative reference in the Client Contact Name: event that the primary references fail to respond to Phone #: DCJS outreach. E-mail address: Clients provided will be Alternate Contact Name: contacted to verify information and quality and Alternate Phone #: satisfaction of the work provided to the client as Alternate e-mail address: described in Section 5.2

Alternate Client	
Firm Name:	
Address:	
Client Contact Name:	
Phone #:	
E-mail address:	
Alternate Contact Name:	
Alternate Phone #:	
Alternate e-mail address:	

Attachment C: Technical Proposal Response Form

This section outlines specific requirements the Bidder should address to receive technical evaluation points in response to this proposal. The Bidder should provide all information requested and must be as specific as possible to ensure DCJS can score the Bidder's response appropriately. Incomplete or vague responses will negatively impact the technical score.

Bidder must submit a detailed description of each feature as listed in **Section 5.1 Technical Proposal Questions** (**Attachment C**) of this RFP. If preferred, Bidder may attach additional response documents and reference the attachments in the corresponding response fields below. The Bidder is not limited to the defined spaces below.

1.	Vendor will provide a detailed plan, timeline, and description of curriculum development a training materials described in Deliverable 1. This will include tasks for the development a design of the new curriculum.	and and
۷.	Vendor will provide a detailed description of adult learning methodologies that would be considered for integration into the curriculum design for Deliverable 1.	ре

3.	Vendor will provide examples of previously developed course materials that demonstrate the utilization of adult learning methodologies and evidence-based curriculum design. This may include examples from previously developed Instructor Manuals, student guides, and other supplemental learning aides (i.e., PowerPoints, videos, reading assignments, etc.), that are similar to and/or could be used for the curriculum and training materials described in Deliverable 1
4.	Vendor will detail their experience in developing training courses and materials specific to providing Complex Trauma training for violence prevention programs.

5.	Vendor will provide a detailed plan, timeline, and description of Deliverable 2 tasks for a "Kick Off" training to implement the new curriculum to SNUG Site staff. The site staff are responsible for returning to their respective teams and presenting the full training.
6.	Vendor will provide a description of program support and guidance to be provided during the implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful transfer of knowledge to students and instructors to deliver the new curriculum for Deliverable 3.
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful
6.	implementation process of the student and instructor level courses. This will ensure the successful

7.	Vendor will provide a detailed plan, timeline, and description of instructor curriculum developme instructor training materials, and technical assistance to be provided that will ensure the success transfer of knowledge to instructors to deliver the new curriculum for Deliverable 4.

Attachment E: Financial Response Form

Deliverable	Quantity	Cost	Total Cost = Quantity X Cost
Deliverable 1 : Curriculum Design and Development of Training Materials Expenses related to deliverables including administrative costs, travel, etc., must be included in the overall costs listed.	1	(To be paid upon acceptance of Deliverable #1)	
Deliverable 2: Provide two in-person "Kick-Off Trainings" to SNUG site staff Expenses related to deliverables including administrative costs, travel, etc., must be	2	(Per Training)	
Included in the overall costs listed. Deliverable 3: Program Support and Guidance During Implementation. Based on per hour rate up to 100 hours starting at the completion of Deliverable 2 and continuing for a period of one year. Expenses related to deliverables including	100	(Per hour cost)	
administrative costs, travel, etc., must be included in the overall costs listed. Deliverable 4: Train-the-Trainer (T3) Curriculum Design and Development of Training Materials and provide one in-person T3 training session. Expenses related to deliverables including administrative costs, travel, etc., must be included in the overall costs listed.	1	(Per Training)	
idder Name:		Proposal Total Cost:	
uthorized Signature:			
rinted Name:			
tle:			
ederal ID #:			
ate:			

Attachment F: Formal Offer Letter

TO BE COMPLETED ON OFFERER'S LETTERHEAD

[INSERT DATE]

Procurement Officer, Office of Budget and Finance New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services Alfred E. Smith Office Building 10th Floor 80 S. Swan St, Albany, New York 12210

Dear Procurement Officer:

RE: SNUG Trauma Training RFP #DCJS 2025-03 Formal Offer to the State of New York

[INSERT OFFERER NAME] hereby submits this firm and binding offer to the State of New York in response to New York State Request for Proposals (RFP) #DCJS 2025-03 by the New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services for the SNUG Trauma Training. The Bid Proposal hereby submitted meets or exceeds all terms, conditions and requirements set forth in the above-referenced RFP. This formal offer will remain firm and non-revocable for a minimum period of one (1) year from the date proposals are due to be received by the State, or until a Contract is approved by the NYS Comptroller and executed by the State.

[INSERT OFFERER NAME] complete offer is set forth in three, separately bound volumes as follows:

Technical Proposal: Total of 5 hard copy volumes, with 1 electronic copy on a Portable USB

Drive

Administrative Proposal: Total of 5 hard copy volumes, with 1 electronic copy on a Portable USB

Drive

Financial Proposal: Total of 2 hard copy volumes, with 1 electronic copy on a Portable USB

Drive

[INSERT OFFERER NAME] hereby affirms that, at the time of bid submission, Offerer knows of no factors existing at time of bid submission or which are anticipated to arise during the procurement or Contract term, which would constitute a potential conflict of interest in successfully meeting the contractual obligations set forth in the above-referenced RFP and the Bid Proposal hereby submitted, including but not limited to:

- 1. No potential for conflict of interest on the part of the Offerer or any Subcontractor due to prior, current, or proposed contracts, engagements, or affiliations; and
- 2. No potential conflicts in the sequence or timing of the proposed award under this procurement relative to the timeframe for service delivery, or personnel or financial staffing commitments of Offerer or proposed Subcontractors to other projects.

By signing, the undersigned individual affirms and represents that he has the legal authority and capacity to sign and make this offer on behalf of, and has signed using that authority to legally bind **[INSERT OFFERER NAME]** to the offer, and possesses the legal capacity to act on behalf of Offerer to execute a Contract with the State of New York.

	Signature [INSERT BIDDER NAME] [INSERTITLE]
Bidder Name:	
Bidder Address:	
Telephone Number:	
Email address:	
Contract Administrator Name and Title:	
List restrictions. if any, under which the Bidder's primary ne	egotiators will operate during contract

negotiations:

Please complete one of the following acknowledgements based on your type of business:

		COR	PORATE ACK	NOWLEDGEMENT			
STATE OF :ss.:		}					
COUNTY OF		}					
	On the		day of		in the y	ear 20 ,	before
me personally cam	ne:			ay that he/she/they			_, to me
known, who, being							
				(the President or o	; tha	at he/she/the	y is (are)
in for all dealers are a local	\I\ . f			(the President or o	ther officer	or director c	r attorney
in fact duly appoint						, the co	rnoration
described in and w	hich execut	ted the abov	ve instrument:	and that he/she/they	v signed his	, the constant	me(s)
thereto by authority					y Signou in	S/TICI/TITOII TIE	1110(3)
anoroto by additionity	y or the boa	ra or allook	or oard corp	oranori.			
Signature and Off	ice of Pers	on Taking	Acknowledger	ment			
_			_				
		PART	NERSHIP ACK	NOWLEDGEMENT			
STATE OF		}			1		
:ss.:		-					
COUNTY OF		}		in the year 20,			
On the	e	day (of	in the year 20,	before me	e personally	came:
	(-) !		to me l	known, who, being b	by me duly	sworn, did d	epose and
say that he reside	(s) in			(the Gen	oral/Manag	ning Partner	or other
officer or attorney i	n fact duly :	annointed)	of	(the Gen	ıcı al/ iviai iaç	ging Faither	the
partnership describ	ned in said	instrument:	that, by the te	rms of said partners	hip. he is	authorized t	_, ano to execute
the foregoing instru	ument on be	ehalf of the	partnership for	the purposes set for	rth therein;	and that, pu	irsuant to
				the name and on be			
and deed of said p	artnership.		-				
				 _			
Signature and Off	ice of Pers	on Taking	Acknowledger	ment			
		INDI	אוטוואו אכאא	OWLEDGEMENT			
STATE OF) IIIDI	VIDUAL ACKIV	OVVLLDGLIVILIVI			
:SS.:		,					
COUNTY OF		1					
	On the	day of		in the year 2	20 ł	pefore me pe	ersonally
appeared:	<u></u>	aa, a		n, and your 2		known to m	e to be the
person who execut	ted the fore	going instru	ıment, who, bei	ing duly sworn by m	e did depo	se and say t	hat he
resides at	,				n of	·	_
County of		, Sta	ate of	behalf.	and that _h	e executed t	:he
foregoing instrume	nt in his/hei	r name and	on his/her own	behalf.			
Notema Destalla				<u></u>			
Notary Public							

Attachment G: Questions Template

Vendor N	lame [.]	
Address:		
Contact	L	
Name:		
Telephor	ne #:	
E-Mail A	ddress:	
	RFP Part,	
RFP	Section &	
Page	Paragraph	
Number	Reference	Question(s)

Please submit to: DCJSprocurement@DCJS.ny.gov

APPENDIX A

STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NEW YORK STATE CONTRACTS

PLEASE RETAIN THIS DOCUMENT FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

June 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	EXECUTORY CLAUSE	17	
2.	NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE	17	
3.	COMPTROLLER'S APPROVAL	17	
4.	WORKERS'S COMPENSATION BENEFITS	17	
5.	NON-DISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS1	7-18	
6.	WAGE & HOURS PROVISIONS	18	
7.	NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION	18	
8.	INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT PROHIBITION	18	
9.	SET-OFF RIGHTS	. 18	
	. RECORDS		19
	. IDENTIFYING INFORMAITON & PRIVACY NOTIFICATION		
12.	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITIES & WOMEN19	9-20	
13.	. CONFLICTING TERMS	20	
14.	. GOVERNING LAW	. 20	
	. LATE PAYMENT		
	. NO ARBITRATION		
	. SERVICE OF PROCESS		
	. PROHIBITION ON PURCHASE OF TROPICAL HARDWOODS		
19.	. MACBRIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES	. 20	
	OMNIBUS PROCUREMENT ACT OF 1992		
	RECIPROCITY & SANCTIONS PROVISIONS		
22.	. COMPLIANCE WITH BREACH NOTIFICATION & DATA SECURITY	21	
23.	COMPLIANCE WITH CONSULTANT DISCLOSURE LAW	21	
	PROCUREMENT LOBBYING		
25.	. CERTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION TO COLLECT SALES & COMPENSATING USE TAX BY	_	TAIN
	STATE CONTRACTORS, AFFILIATES & SUBCONTRACTORS		
	. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT	. 22	
27	ADMISSIBILITY OF REPORDLICTION OF CONTRACT	22	

STANDARD CLAUSES FOR NYS CONTRACTS

The parties to the attached contract, license, lease, amendment or other agreement of any kind (hereinafter, "the contract" or "this contract") agree to be bound by the following clauses which are hereby made a part of the contract (the word "Contractor" herein refers to any party other than the State, whether a contractor, licenser, licensee, lessor, lessee or any other party):

- 1. <u>EXECUTORY CLAUSE</u>. In accordance with Section 41 of the State Finance Law, the State shall have no liability under this contract to the Contractor or to anyone else beyond funds appropriated and available for this contract.
- 2. NON-ASSIGNMENT CLAUSE. In accordance with Section 138 of the State Finance Law, this contract may not be assigned by the Contractor or its right, title or interest therein assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise disposed of without the State's previous written consent, and attempts to do so are null and void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such prior written consent of an assignment of a contract let pursuant to Article XI of the State Finance Law may be waived at the discretion of the contracting agency and with the concurrence of the State Comptroller where the original contract was subject to the State Comptroller's approval, where the assignment is due to a reorganization, merger or consolidation of the Contractor's business entity or enterprise. The State retains its right to approve an assignment and to require that any Contractor demonstrate its responsibility to do business with the State. The Contractor may, however, assign its right to receive payments without the State's prior written consent unless this contract concerns Certificates of Participation pursuant to Article 5-A of the State Finance Law.
- 3. COMPTROLLER'S APPROVAL. In accordance with Section 112 of the State Finance Law, if this contract exceeds \$50,000 (or \$75,000 for State University of New York or City University of New York contracts for goods, services, construction and printing, and \$150,000 for State University Health Care Facilities) or if this is an amendment for any amount to a contract which, as so amended, exceeds said statutory amount, or if, by this contract, the State agrees to give something other than money when the value or reasonably estimated value of such consideration exceeds \$25,000, it shall not be valid, effective or binding upon the State until it has been approved by the State Comptroller and filed in his office. Comptroller's approval of contracts let by the Office of General Services, either for itself or its customer agencies by the Office of General Services Business Services Center, is required when such contracts exceed \$85,000. Comptroller's approval of contracts established as centralized contracts through the Office of General Services is required when such contracts exceed \$125,000, and when a purchase order or other procurement transaction issued under such centralized contract exceeds \$200,000.
- **4.** <u>WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS</u>. In accordance with Section 142 of the State Finance Law, this contract shall be void and of no force and effect unless the Contractor shall provide and maintain coverage during the life of this contract for the benefit of such employees as are required to be covered by the provisions of the Workers' Compensation Law.
- 5. NON-DISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent required by Article 15 of the Executive Law (also known as the Human Rights Law) and all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions, the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment, nor subject any individual to harassment, because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, citizenship or immigration status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, military status, sex, disability, predisposing genetic characteristics, familial status, marital status, or domestic violence victim status or because the individual has opposed any practices forbidden under the Human Rights Law or has filed a complaint, testified, or assisted in any proceeding under the Human Rights Law. Furthermore, in accordance with Section 220-e of the Labor Law, if this is a contract for the construction, alteration or repair of any public building or public work or for the manufacture, sale or distribution of materials, equipment or supplies, and to the extent that this contract shall be performed within the State of New York, Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors shall, by reason of race, creed, color, disability, sex, or national origin: (a) discriminate in hiring against any New York State citizen who is qualified and available to perform the work; or (b) discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the performance of work under this contract. If this is a building service contract as defined in Section 230 of the Labor Law, then, in accordance with Section 239 thereof, Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors shall by reason of

race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex or disability: (a) discriminate in hiring against any New York State citizen who is qualified and available to perform the work; or (b) discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the performance of work under this contract. Contractor is subject to fines of \$50.00 per person per day for any violation of Section 220-e or Section 239 as well as possible termination of this contract and forfeiture of all moneys due hereunder for a second or subsequent violation.

- **6.** <u>WAGE AND HOURS PROVISIONS</u>. If this is a public work contract covered by Article 8 of the Labor Law or a building service contract covered by Article 9 thereof, neither Contractor's employees nor the employees of its subcontractors may be required or permitted to work more than the number of hours or days stated in said statutes, except as otherwise provided in the Labor Law and as set forth in prevailing wage and supplement schedules issued by the State Labor Department. Furthermore, Contractor and its subcontractors must pay at least the prevailing wage rate and pay or provide the prevailing supplements, including the premium rates for overtime pay, as determined by the State Labor Department in accordance with the Labor Law. Additionally, effective April 28, 2008, if this is a public work contract covered by Article 8 of the Labor Law, the Contractor understands and agrees that the filing of payrolls in a manner consistent with Subdivision 3-a of Section 220 of the Labor Law shall be a condition precedent to payment by the State of any State approved sums due and owing for work done upon the project.
- 7. NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION. In accordance with Section 139-d of the State Finance Law, if this contract was awarded based upon the submission of bids, Contractor affirms, under penalty of perjury, that its bid was arrived at independently and without collusion aimed at restricting competition. Contractor further affirms that, at the time Contractor submitted its bid, an authorized and responsible person executed and delivered to the State a non-collusive bidding certification on Contractor's behalf.
- 8. INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT PROHIBITION. In accordance with Section 220-f of the Labor Law and Section 139-h of the State Finance Law, if this contract exceeds \$5,000, the Contractor agrees, as a material condition of the contract, that neither the Contractor nor any substantially owned or affiliated person, firm, partnership or corporation has participated, is participating, or shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the federal Export Administration Act of 1979 (50 USC App. Sections 2401 et seq.) or regulations thereunder. If such Contractor, or any of the aforesaid affiliates of Contractor, is convicted or is otherwise found to have violated said laws or regulations upon the final determination of the United States Commerce Department or any other appropriate agency of the United States subsequent to the contract's execution, such contract, amendment or modification thereto shall be rendered forfeit and void. The Contractor shall so notify the State Comptroller within five (5) business days of such conviction, determination or disposition of appeal (2 NYCRR § 105.4).
- **9. <u>SET-OFF RIGHTS.</u>** The State shall have all of its common law, equitable and statutory rights of set-off. These rights shall include, but not be limited to, the State's option to withhold for the purposes of set-off any moneys due to the Contractor under this contract up to any amounts due and owing to the State with regard to this contract, any other contract with any State department or agency, including any contract for a term commencing prior to the term of this contract, plus any amounts due and owing to the State for any other reason including, without limitation, tax delinquencies, fee delinquencies or monetary penalties relative thereto. The State shall exercise its set-off rights in accordance with normal State practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of such audit by the State agency, its representatives, or the State Comptroller.
- 10. <u>RECORDS</u>. The Contractor shall establish and maintain complete and accurate books, records, documents, accounts and other evidence directly pertinent to performance under this contract (hereinafter, collectively, the "Records"). The Records must be kept for the balance of the calendar year in which they were made and for six (6) additional years thereafter. The State Comptroller, the Attorney General and any other person or entity authorized to conduct an examination, as well as the agency or agencies involved in this contract, shall have access to the Records during normal business hours at an office of the Contractor within the State of New York or, if no such office is available, at a mutually agreeable and reasonable venue within the State, for the term specified above for the purposes of inspection, auditing and copying. The State shall take reasonable steps to protect from public disclosure any of the Records which are exempt from disclosure under Section 87 of the Public Officers Law (the "Statute") provided that: (i) the Contractor shall timely inform an appropriate State official, in writing, that said records should not be disclosed; and (ii) said records shall be sufficiently identified; and (iii) designation of said

records as exempt under the Statute is reasonable. Nothing contained herein shall diminish, or in any way adversely affect, the State's right to discovery in any pending or future litigation.

- 11. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION AND PRIVACY NOTIFICATION. (a) Identification Number(s). Every invoice or New York State Claim for Payment submitted to a New York State agency by a payee, for payment for the sale of goods or services or for transactions (e.g., leases, easements, licenses, etc.) related to real or personal property must include the payee's identification number. The number is any or all of the following: (i) the payee's Federal employer identification number, (ii) the payee's Federal social security number, and/or (iii) the payee's Vendor Identification Number assigned by the Statewide Financial System. Failure to include such number or numbers may delay payment. Where the payee does not have such number or numbers, the payee, on its invoice or Claim for Payment, must give the reason or reasons why the payee does not have such number or numbers.
- (b) Privacy Notification. (1) The authority to request the above personal information from a seller of goods or services or a lessor of real or personal property, and the authority to maintain such information, is found in Section 5 of the State Tax Law. Disclosure of this information by the seller or lessor to the State is mandatory. The principal purpose for which the information is collected is to enable the State to identify individuals, businesses and others who have been delinquent in filing tax returns or may have understated their tax liabilities and to generally identify persons affected by the taxes administered by the Commissioner of Taxation and Finance. The information will be used for tax administration purposes and for any other purpose authorized by law. (2) The personal information is requested by the purchasing unit of the agency contracting to purchase the goods or services or lease the real or personal property covered by this contract or lease. The information is maintained in the Statewide Financial System by the Vendor Management Unit within the Bureau of State Expenditures, Office of the State Comptroller, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12236.
- 12. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITIES AND WOMEN. In accordance with Section 312 of the Executive Law and 5 NYCRR Part 143, if this contract is: (i) a written agreement or purchase order instrument, providing for a total expenditure in excess of \$25,000.00, whereby a contracting agency is committed to expend or does expend funds in return for labor, services, supplies, equipment, materials or any combination of the foregoing, to be performed for, or rendered or furnished to the contracting agency; or (ii) a written agreement in excess of \$100,000.00 whereby a contracting agency is committed to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements thereon; or (iii) a written agreement in excess of \$100,000.00 whereby the owner of a State assisted housing project is committed to expend or does expend funds for the acquisition, construction, demolition, replacement, major repair or renovation of real property and improvements thereon for such project, then the following shall apply and by signing this agreement the Contractor certifies and affirms that it is Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy that:
- (a) The Contractor will not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status, shall make and document its conscientious and active efforts to employ and utilize minority group members and women in its work force on State contracts and will undertake or continue existing programs of affirmative action to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination. Affirmative action shall mean recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgradings, demotion, transfer, layoff, or termination and rates of pay or other forms of compensation;
- (b) at the request of the contracting agency, the Contractor shall request each employment agency, labor union, or authorized representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, to furnish a written statement that such employment agency, labor union or representative will not discriminate on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status and that such union or representative will affirmatively cooperate in the implementation of the Contractor's obligations herein; and
- (c) the Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that, in the performance of the State contract, all qualified applicants will be afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status.

Contractor will include the provisions of "(a), (b) and (c)" above, in every subcontract over \$25,000.00 for the construction, demolition, replacement, major repair, renovation, planning or design of real property and improvements thereon (the "Work") except where the Work is for the beneficial use of the Contractor. Section 312 does not apply to: (i) work, goods or services unrelated to this contract; or (ii) employment outside New York State. The State shall consider compliance by a contractor or subcontractor with the requirements of any federal law concerning equal employment opportunity which effectuates the purpose of this clause. The contracting agency shall determine whether the imposition of the requirements of the provisions hereof duplicate or conflict with any such federal law and if such duplication or conflict exists, the contracting agency shall waive the applicability of Section 312 to the extent of such duplication or conflict. Contractor will comply with all duly promulgated and lawful rules and regulations of the Department of Economic Development's Division of Minority and Women's Business Development pertaining hereto.

- **13. CONFLICTING TERMS.** In the event of a conflict between the terms of the contract (including any and all attachments thereto and amendments thereof) and the terms of this Appendix A, the terms of this Appendix A shall control.
- **14. GOVERNING LAW**. This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York except where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise.
- **15. LATE PAYMENT**. Timeliness of payment and any interest to be paid to Contractor for late payment shall be governed by Article 11-A of the State Finance Law to the extent required by law.
- **16. NO ARBITRATION.** Disputes involving this contract, including the breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding arbitration (except where statutorily authorized), but must, instead, be heard in a court of competent jurisdiction of the State of New York.
- 17. <u>SERVICE OF PROCESS</u>. In addition to the methods of service allowed by the State Civil Practice Law & Rules ("CPLR"), Contractor hereby consents to service of process upon it by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. Service hereunder shall be complete upon Contractor's actual receipt of process or upon the State's receipt of the return thereof by the United States Postal Service as refused or undeliverable. Contractor must promptly notify the State, in writing, of each and every change of address to which service of process can be made. Service by the State to the last known address shall be sufficient. Contractor will have thirty (30) calendar days after service hereunder is complete in which to respond.
- 18. PROHIBITION ON PURCHASE OF TROPICAL HARDWOODS. The Contractor certifies and warrants that all wood products to be used under this contract award will be in accordance with, but not limited to, the specifications and provisions of Section 165 of the State Finance Law, (Use of Tropical Hardwoods) which prohibits purchase and use of tropical hardwoods, unless specifically exempted, by the State or any governmental agency or political subdivision or public benefit corporation. Qualification for an exemption under this law will be the responsibility of the contractor to establish to meet with the approval of the State.

In addition, when any portion of this contract involving the use of woods, whether supply or installation, is to be performed by any subcontractor, the prime Contractor will indicate and certify in the submitted bid proposal that the subcontractor has been informed and is in compliance with specifications and provisions regarding use of tropical hardwoods as detailed in § 165 State Finance Law. Any such use must meet with the approval of the State; otherwise, the bid may not be considered responsive. Under bidder certifications, proof of qualification for exemption will be the responsibility of the Contractor to meet with the approval of the State.

19. MACBRIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES. In accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment Principles (Chapter 807 of the Laws of 1992), the Contractor hereby stipulates that the Contractor either (a) has no business operations in Northern Ireland, or (b) shall take lawful steps in good faith to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment Principles (as described in Section 165 of the New York State Finance Law), and shall permit independent monitoring of compliance with such principles.

20. OMNIBUS PROCUREMENT ACT OF 1992. It is the policy of New York State to maximize opportunities for the participation of New York State business enterprises, including minority- and women-owned business enterprises as bidders, subcontractors and suppliers on its procurement contracts.

Information on the availability of New York State subcontractors and suppliers is available from:

NYS Department of Economic Development Division for Small Business and Technology Development 625 Broadway Albany, New York 12245 Telephone: 518-292-5100

A directory of certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises is available from:

NYS Department of Economic Development Division of Minority and Women's Business Development 633 Third Avenue 33rd Floor New York, NY 10017 646-846-7364

email: <u>mwbebusinessdev@esd.ny.gov</u>

https://ny.newnycontracts.com/FrontEnd/searchcertifieddirectory.asp

The Omnibus Procurement Act of 1992 (Chapter 844 of the Laws of 1992, codified in State Finance Law § 139-i and Public Authorities Law § 2879(3)(n)–(p)) requires that by signing this bid proposal or contract, as applicable, Contractors certify that whenever the total bid amount is greater than \$1 million:

- (a) The Contractor has made reasonable efforts to encourage the participation of New York State Business Enterprises as suppliers and subcontractors, including certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises, on this project, and has retained the documentation of these efforts to be provided upon request to the State;
- (b) The Contractor has complied with the Federal Equal Opportunity Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-261), as amended;
- (c) The Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to provide notification to New York State residents of employment opportunities on this project through listing any such positions with the Job Service Division of the New York State Department of Labor, or providing such notification in such manner as is consistent with existing collective bargaining contracts or agreements. The Contractor agrees to document these efforts and to provide said documentation to the State upon request; and
- (d) The Contractor acknowledges notice that the State may seek to obtain offset credits from foreign countries as a result of this contract and agrees to cooperate with the State in these efforts.
- **21.** RECIPROCITY AND SANCTIONS PROVISIONS. Bidders are hereby notified that if their principal place of business is located in a country, nation, province, state or political subdivision that penalizes New York State vendors, and if the goods or services they offer will be substantially produced or performed outside New York State, the Omnibus Procurement Act 1994 and 2000 amendments (Chapter 684 and Chapter 383, respectively, codified in State Finance Law § 165(6) and Public Authorities Law § 2879(5)) require that they be denied contracts which they would otherwise obtain. NOTE: As of May 2023, the list of discriminatory jurisdictions subject to this provision includes the states of South Carolina, Alaska, West Virginia, Wyoming, Louisiana and Hawaii.
- **22.** COMPLIANCE WITH BREACH NOTIFICATION AND DATA SECURITY LAWS. Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the New York State Information Security Breach and Notification Act (General Business Law §§ 899-aa and 899-bb and State Technology Law § 208).

- 23. <u>COMPLIANCE WITH CONSULTANT DISCLOSURE LAW</u>. If this is a contract for consulting services, defined for purposes of this requirement to include analysis, evaluation, research, training, data processing, computer programming, engineering, environmental, health, and mental health services, accounting, auditing, paralegal, legal or similar services, then, in accordance with Section 163 (4)(g) of the State Finance Law (as amended by Chapter 10 of the Laws of 2006), the Contractor shall timely, accurately and properly comply with the requirement to submit an annual employment report for the contract to the agency that awarded the contract, the Department of Civil Service and the State Comptroller.
- **24. PROCUREMENT LOBBYING.** To the extent this agreement is a "procurement contract" as defined by State Finance Law §§ 139-j and 139-k, by signing this agreement the contractor certifies and affirms that all disclosures made in accordance with State Finance Law §§ 139-j and 139-k are complete, true and accurate. In the event such certification is found to be intentionally false or intentionally incomplete, the State may terminate the agreement by providing written notification to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

25. <u>CERTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION TO COLLECT SALES AND COMPENSATING USE TAX BY CERTAIN STATE CONTRACTORS, AFFILIATES AND SUBCONTRACTORS.</u>

To the extent this agreement is a contract as defined by Tax Law § 5-a, if the contractor fails to make the certification required by Tax Law § 5-a or if during the term of the contract, the Department of Taxation and Finance or the covered agency, as defined by Tax Law § 5-a, discovers that the certification, made under penalty of perjury, is false, then such failure to file or false certification shall be a material breach of this contract and this contract may be terminated, by providing written notification to the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the agreement, if the covered agency determines that such action is in the best interest of the State.

26. **IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT**. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies in accordance with State Finance Law § 165-a that it is not on the "Entities Determined to be Non-Responsive Bidders/Offerers pursuant to the New York State Iran Divestment Act of 2012" ("Prohibited Entities List") posted at: https://ogs.ny.gov/iran-divestment-act-2012

Contractor further certifies that it will not utilize on this Contract any subcontractor that is identified on the Prohibited Entities List. Contractor agrees that should it seek to renew or extend this Contract, it must provide the same certification at the time the Contract is renewed or extended. Contractor also agrees that any proposed Assignee of this Contract will be required to certify that it is not on the Prohibited Entities List before the contract assignment will be approved by the State.

During the term of the Contract, should the state agency receive information that a person (as defined in State Finance Law § 165-a) is in violation of the above-referenced certifications, the state agency will review such information and offer the person an opportunity to respond. If the person fails to demonstrate that it has ceased its engagement in the investment activity which is in violation of the Act within 90 days after the determination of such violation, then the state agency shall take such action as may be appropriate and provided for by law, rule, or contract, including, but not limited to, imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, or declaring the Contractor in default.

The state agency reserves the right to reject any bid, request for assignment, renewal or extension for an entity that appears on the Prohibited Entities List prior to the award, assignment, renewal or extension of a contract, and to pursue a responsibility review with respect to any entity that is awarded a contract and appears on the Prohibited Entities list after contract award.

27. ADMISSIBILITY OF REPRODUCTION OF CONTRACT. Notwithstanding the best evidence rule or any other legal principle or rule of evidence to the contrary, the Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it waives any and all objections to the admissibility into evidence at any court proceeding or to the use at any examination before trial of an electronic reproduction of this contract, in the form approved by the State Comptroller, if such approval was required, regardless of whether the original of said contract is in existence.

Appendix C: ENCOURAGING USE OF NEW YORK STATE BUSINESSES IN CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

New York State businesses have a substantial presence in State contracts and strongly contribute to the economies of the state and the nation. In recognition of their economic activity and leadership in doing business in New York State, Bidders/Proposers for this contract for commodities, services or technology are strongly encouraged and expected to consider New York State businesses in the fulfillment of the requirements of the contract. Such partnering may be as subcontractors, suppliers, protégés or other supporting roles.

Bidders/Proposers need to be aware that all authorized users of this contract will be strongly encouraged, to the maximum extent practical and consistent with legal requirements, to use responsible and responsive New York State businesses in purchasing commodities that are of equal quality and functionality and in utilizing services and technology. Furthermore, bidders/proposers are reminded that they must continue to utilize small, minority and women-owned businesses, consistent with current State law.

Utilizing New York State businesses in State contracts will help create more private sector jobs, rebuild New York's infrastructure, and maximize economic activity to the mutual benefit of the contractor and its New York State business partners. New York State businesses will promote the contractor's optimal performance under the contract, thereby fully benefiting the public sector programs that are supported by associated procurements.

Public procurements can drive and improve the State's economic engine through promotion of the use of New York businesses by its contractors. The State therefore expects Bidders/Proposers to provide maximum assistance to New York businesses in their use of the contract. The potential participation by all kinds of New York businesses will deliver great value to the State and its taxpayers.

Bidders/Proposers can demonstrate their commitment to the use of New York State businesses by responding to the question below:

Print Legal Name of Bidder	
Sign Name and Title of	
Authorized Signatory	
Yes 🗌 No 🗌	es be used in the performance of this contract? Business(es) that will be used below. (If additional space is
NYS Business Name	NYS Business Address

Appendix D: Non-Collusive Bidding Certification

REQUIRED BY SECTION 139-D OF THE STATE FINANCE LAW

BY SUBMISSION OF THIS BID, BIDDER AND EACH PERSON SIGNING ON BEHALF OF BIDDER CERTIFIES, AND IN THE CASE OF JOINT BID, EACH PARTY THERETO CERTIFIES AS TO ITS OWN ORGANIZATION, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT TO THE BEST OF HIS/HER KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF:

- (1) The prices of this bid have been arrived at independently, without collusion, consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purposes of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other Bidder or with any competitor;
- (2) Unless otherwise required by law, the prices which have been quoted in this bid have not been knowingly disclosed by the Bidder and will not knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other Bidder or to any competitor; and
- (3) No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting competition.

A BID SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD NOR SHALL ANY AWARD BE MADE WHERE

(1), (2), AND (3) ABOVE HAVE NOT BEEN COMPLIED WITH; PROVIDED HOWEVER, THAT IF IN

ANY CASE THE BIDDER(S) CANNOT MAKE THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATION, THE BIDDER

SHALL SO STATE AND SHALL FURNISH BELOW A SIGNED STATEMENT WHICH SETS FORTH

IN DETAIL THE REASONS THEREFORE:

Subscribed to under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of New York, this				
day of, 20 as the act and deed of said corporation partnersh				
IF BIDDER(S) IS (ARE) A PARTNERSHIP, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:				
NAMES OF PARTNERS OR PRINCIPALS	LEGAL RESIDENCE			

IF BIDDER(S) IS (ARE) A CORPORATION, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:

NAME	LEGAL RESIDENCE
President:	
Secretary:	
Treasurer:	
IDENTIFYING DATA:	
Potential Contractor	
Address	
Telephone	Title
If applicable, Responsible Corporate Officer	
Name	
Title	
Signature	
Joint or combined bids by companies or firms participant	must be certified on behalf of each
Legal name of person, firm or corporation	Legal name of person, firm or corporation
By Name	ByName
Title	
	Title
Address	Address
City State Zip	City State Zip

Appendix E: DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

PROCUREMENT LOBBYING GUIDELINES

I. INTRODUCTION

These Guidelines, which have been issued pursuant to the New York State Finance Law, apply to all Division of Criminal Justice Services' ("DCJS") procurement contracts and limit certain types of communications between Offerers and DCJS during the Restricted Period of a Governmental Procurement. During the Restricted Period, an Offerer may communicate only with the person or persons designated by DCJS to receive communications regarding such Governmental Procurement.

II. STATUTORY DEFINITIONS

Article of Procurement A commodity, service, technology, public work, construction, revenue

contract, or the purchase, sale or lease of real property or an acquisition or granting of an interest in real property that is the subject of a governmental

procurement.

Contact Any oral, written or electronic communication with DCJS under

circumstances where a reasonable person would infer that the communication was intended to influence the governmental procurement.

Governmental Entity Includes New York State agencies, public benefit corporations, public

authorities of which at least one member is appointed by the Governor, both houses of the New York State Assembly and Senate, the Unified Court

System, and certain Industrial Development Agencies.

Governmental Procurement (i) the preparation of terms of the specifications, bid documents, requests

for proposals, or evaluations criteria for a procurement contract, (ii) solicitation for a procurement contract, (iii) evaluation of a procurement contract, (iv) award, approval, denial or disapproval of a procurement contract, or (v) approval or denial of an assignment, amendment (other than amendments that are authorized and payable under the terms of the procurement contract as it was finally awarded or approved by the Comptroller, as applicable), renewal or extension of a procurement contract, or any other material change in the procurement contract resulting

in a financial benefit to the Offerer.

Offerer The individual or entity, or any employee agent or consultant or person acting on behalf of such individual or entity, that contacts DCJS about a

Governmental Procurement.

Procurement Contract Any contract or other agreement for an Article of Procurement involving

an estimated annualized expenditure in excess of \$15,000. Grants, Article Eleven-B State Finance Law Contracts, Intergovernmental Agreements, Railroad and Utility Force Accounts, Utility Relocation Project Agreements or Orders of Eminent Domain Transactions shall not be deemed

Procurement Contracts in these Guidelines.

Restricted PeriodThe period of time commencing with the earliest date of written notice, advertisement or solicitation of a request for proposal, invitation for bids, or

solicitation of proposals, or any other method for soliciting a response from **Offerers** intending to result in a **Procurement Contract** with DCJS and, ending with the final contract award and approval by, where applicable, the

Office of the State Comptroller.

III. EXEMPTIONS

While an **Offerer** shall only contact the person or persons who may be contacted by **Offerers** as designated by the governmental entity relative to the government procurement during the restricted period, certain communications are exempt from these Guidelines. These include: (i) submissions in response to an invitation for bid, a request for proposal or other solicitation, (ii) submissions of written questions to a designated contact set forth in an invitation for bid, request for proposal or other solicitation, (iii) participation in a conference provided for in an invitation for bid, request for proposal or other solicitation, (iv) contract negotiations, (v) inquiries regarding the factual status of a **Procurement Contract**, and (vi) complaints and protests regarding the procurement process and outcome.

IV. NEW YORK STATE LEGISLATURE OR LEGISLATIVE STAFF

Any communication received by DCJS from members of the New York State Legislature or legislative staff, when acting in their official capacity, shall not be considered a **Contact**.

V. VIOLATIONS

A violation of these Guidelines occurs when there is a **Contact** during the **Restricted Period** between the **Offerer** and someone other than the person or persons designated by DCJS to receive communications for the particular **Governmental Procurement**. This includes instances where the **Offerer Contacts** DCJS regarding **Governmental Procurements** of other **Governmental Entities**.

Attempts by an **Offerer** to influence a **Governmental Procurement** in a manner that would result in a violation of the Public Officers Law or Penal Law also shall also be a violation of these Guidelines.

VI. PROCEDURES

- A. Notifying Vendors of Procurement Lobbying Guidelines
 - 1. For each **Procurement Contract**, the DCJS Finance Office will designate a person or persons to receive communications from **Offerers** concerning the **Procurement Contract**.
 - 2. The DCJS Finance Office will incorporate a summary of the policy and prohibitions regarding permissible communications during a **Governmental Procurement** in its documents relating to the **Procurement Contract** and provide a copy of these Guidelines in such documents.
 - 3. The DCJS Finance Office shall seek written affirmation from all **Offerers** as to the **Offerer's** understanding of and agreement to comply with these Guidelines (Attachment 1)
- B. Making Determinations of Responsibility
 - 1. Prior to award of a **Procurement Contract**, DCJS must make a responsibility determination with respect to the **Offerer** to be recommended for the award of the contract based upon, among other things, the information supplied by that **Offerer**. The **Offerer** must disclose, using the **Offerer** Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations Form (Attachment 2), whether it has been found non-responsible within the last four years by any **Governmental Entity** for: (1) failure to comply with State Finance Law §139-j; or (2) the intentional provision of false, inaccurate or incomplete information. This disclosure must be certified by the **Offerer** and must affirmatively state that the information supplied by the **Offerer** to DCJS is complete, true and accurate.
 - 2. Any **Procurement Contract** award shall contain a certification by the **Offerer** that all information provided to DCJS is complete, true and accurate. Each DCJS contract shall contain a provision authorizing DCJS to terminate the contract in the event the certification

is found to be intentionally false, intentionally incomplete, or intentionally inaccurate. DCJS will include in the procurement record a statement describing the basis for any action taken pursuant to such termination provision. Admissions by the **Offerer** of past findings of non-responsibility may constitute a basis for rejection of the **Offerer** by DCJS. DCJS shall include in the procurement record a statement describing the basis for any action taken pursuant to such termination provision. DCJS can award a contract to the **Offerer** despite the past findings of non-responsibility if it determines that the award of the **Procurement Contract** to the **Offerer** is necessary to protect public property or public health or safety, and that the **Offerer** is the only source capable of supplying the required **Articles of Procurement** within the necessary time frame. The basis of such a finding must be included in the procurement record of the **Procurement Contract**.

C. Recording of Contacts

- 1. All DCJS employees must record any **Contact**. As defined, a **Contact** is one from any person or entity that is intended to influence procurement. However, any communication received by DCJS from members of the New York State Legislature, or the Legislative Staffs, when acting in their official capacity, shall not be recorded.
- 2. Upon any Contact during the restricted period, DCJS shall obtain the name, address, telephone number, place of principal employment and occupation of the person or organization making the contact and inquire and record whether the person or organization making such contact was the Offerer or was retained, employed or designated by or on behalf of the offerer to appear before or contact DCJS about the governmental procurement. Contact may be initiated by parties with an interest in the procurement that are not necessarily connected directly to the Offerer. Contact may come in the form of telephone conversations, correspondence, electronic mail and person-to- person discussions. The Record of Procurement Contact Form should be used to record Contacts. The form is available on the DCJS Intranet homepage under "Policies and Procedures," "Record of Procurement Contact." The form should be completed by the DCJS employee and e-mailed to DCJSProcurement@dcjs.ny.gov.
- The exempted communications set forth in Article III need not be reported unless a reasonable person would infer that the communications were intended to influence the procurement.
- 4. If a DCJS employee is in doubt about whether a communication was intended to influence the **Governmental Procurement**, he or she should record the communication on the Record of Procurement Contact Form and submit it to DCJSProcurement@dcjs.ny.gov for further investigation.
- 5. The DCJS Finance Office will be required to include all Records of Procurement Contact in the procurement record for the related **Procurement Contract**.

D. Investigation of Contacts/ Penalties for Violations

1. All reported Contacts will be immediately investigated by the DCJS Ethics Officer, or his or her designee. If the DCJS Ethics Officer finds sufficient cause to believe that an Offerer has violated these Guidelines, the Offerer will be notified in writing of the investigation and will be afforded an opportunity to respond to the alleged violation. Investigations will be completed as soon as practicable so as not to delay the progress of the Governmental Procurement.

2. If the DCJS Ethics Officer should find at the conclusion of the investigation that the Offerer knowingly and willfully made prohibited Contact in violation of these Guidelines, then the Offerer shall be disqualified as non-responsible, unless DCJS makes a finding that the award of the Procurement Contract to the Offerer is necessary to protect public property or public health or safety, and that the Offerer is the only source capable of supplying the required Article of Procurement within the necessary time frame. The basis of such a finding must be included in the procurement record of the Procurement Contract.

Attachment 1: Offerer's Affirmation of Understanding of and Agreement pursuant to State Finance Law §139-j (3) and §139-j (6) (b)

Attachment 2: Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations

Form 4: Offerer's Certification of Compliance With State Finance Law §139-k(5)

Attachment 1: Offerer's Affirmation of Understanding of and Agreement pursuant to State Finance Law §139-j (3) and §139-j (6) (b)

Background:

State Finance Law §139-j(6)(b) provides that:

Every Governmental Entity shall seek written affirmations from all Offerers as to the Offerer's understanding of and agreement to comply with the Governmental Entity's procedures relating to permissible contacts during a Governmental Procurement pursuant to subdivision three of this section.

Instructions:

A Governmental Entity must obtain the required affirmation of understanding and agreement to comply with procedures on procurement lobbying restrictions regarding permissible Contacts during the restricted period for a procurement contract in accordance with State Finance Law §§139-j and 139-k. This affirmation shall be obtained as early as possible in the procurement process, such as when the Offerer submits its proposal or bid.

Criminal Justice	hat I have read, understand and agree to co Services' procedures related to permissible required by State Finance Law §139-j (3) a	e Contacts during a Governmental
Ву:		Date:
Name:		(Please print)
Title:		(Please print)
Offerer Name:		-
Offerer Address:	,	-

Background:

New York State Finance Law §139-k (2) obligates a Governmental Entity to obtain specific information regarding prior non-responsibility determinations with respect to State Finance Law §139-j. This information must be collected in addition to the information that is separately obtained pursuant to State Finance Law §163(9). In accordance with State Finance Law §139-k, an Offerer must be asked to disclose whether there has been a finding of non-responsibility made within the previous four (4) years by any Governmental Entity due to: (a) a violation of State Finance Law §139-j or (b) the intentional provision of false or incomplete information to a Governmental Entity. The terms "Offerer" and "Governmental Entity" are defined in State Finance Law §139-j sets forth detailed requirements about the restrictions on Contacts during the procurement process. A violation of State Finance Law §139-j includes, but is not limited to, an impermissible Contact during the restricted period (for example, contacting a person or entity other than the designated contact person, when such Contact does not fall within one of the exemptions).

As part of its responsibility determination, State Finance Law §139-k(3) mandates consideration of whether an Offerer fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information regarding the above non-responsibility determination. In accordance with law, no Procurement Contract shall be awarded to any Offerer that fails to timely disclose accurate or complete information under this section, unless a finding is made that the award of the Procurement Contract to the Offerer is necessary to protect public property or public health safety, and that the Offerer is the only source capable of supplying the required Article of Procurement within the necessary timeframe. See State Finance Law §§139-j (10)(b) and 139-k(3).

Instructions:

A Governmental Entity must include a disclosure request regarding prior non-responsibility determinations in accordance with State Finance Law §139-k in its solicitation of proposals or bid documents or specifications or contract documents, as applicable, for procurement contracts. The attached form is to be completed and submitted by the individual or entity seeking to enter into a Procurement Contract. It shall be submitted to the Governmental Entity conducting the Governmental Procurement.

As an alternative to this form, the Governmental Entity may elect to incorporate this disclosure question into its procurement questionnaire, such as the New York State Standard Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire set out at:

NYS OGS - Procurement Bulletin Best Practices - Determining Vendor Responsibility (state.ny.us)

Attachment 2: Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations

	Name of Individual or Entity Seeking to Enter into the Procurement Contract:			
	Address:			
	Name and Title of Person Submitting this Form:			
	Contract Procurement Number:			
	Date:			
1.	. Has any Governmental Entity made a finding of non-responsibility regarding the individual entity seeking to enter into the Procurement Contract in the previous four years? (Please circ			
	No Yes			
	a. If yes, please answer the next questions:			
2.	. Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to a violation of State Finance Law			
	a. §139-j (Please circle):			
	No Yes			
3.	Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to the intentional provision of fal- incomplete information to a Governmental Entity? (Please circle):	se or		
	No Yes			
4. If you answered yes to any of the above questions, please provide details regarding the finding of non-responsibility below.				
	a. Governmental Entity:			
b. Date of Finding of Non-responsibility: c. Basis of Finding of Non-Responsibility:				

d. (Add additional pages as necessary)

5.	Has any Governmental Entity or other governmental agency terminated or withheld a Procurement Contract with the above-named individual or entity due to the intentional provision of false or incomplete information? (Please circle):				
	No Yes				
6.	If yes, please provide details below.				
	Governmental Entity:				
	Date of Termination or Withholding of Contract:				
	Basis of Termination or Withholding:				
	(Add additional pages as necessary)				
	Offerer certifies that all information provided to the Governmental Entity with respect to State Finance Law §139-k is complete, true and accurate.				
	By: Date: Signature				
	Signature				
	Name: (Please print)				
	Title: (Please print)				

Form 4: Offerer's Certification of Compliance With State Finance Law §139-k(5)

Background:

New York State Finance Law §139-k(5) requires that every Procurement Contract award subject to the provisions of State Finance Law §§139-k or 139-j shall contain a certification by the Offerer that all information provided to the procuring Governmental Entity with respect to State Finance Law §139-k is complete, true and accurate.

Instructions:

A Governmental Entity must obtain the required certification that the information is complete, true and accurate regarding any prior findings of non-responsibility, such as non-responsibility pursuant to State Finance Law §139-j. The Offerer must agree to the certification and provide it to the procuring Governmental Entity

The Offerer/Bidder shall submit the following certification with its bid.

Offerer Certification:

I certify that all information provided to the Governmental Entity with respect to State Finance Law §139-k is complete, true and accurate.

Ву:	Date:
Name:	(Please print)
Title:	(Please print)
Offerer's Name:	
Offerer's Address:	

Appendix I: MWBE Requirements and Equal Employment Opportunities

Contractor Responsibilities Under Executive Law Article 15-A

In July of 1988, Article 15-A of the Executive Law was enacted by the New York State Legislature. This Article provides specific rules, regulations and procedures for minority and women-owned enterprise participation in certain State Contracts.

DCJS is required to implement the provisions of Article 15-A for all of its Contracts (1) in excess of \$25,000 for labor, services, supplies, Equipment, materials, or any combination of the foregoing and (2) for Contracts in excess of \$100,000 for real property renovation and construction. For purposes of this Contract, DCJS hereby establishes a goal of 25% for minority business enterprises (MBE) participation and 5% for women-owned business enterprises (WBE) participation.

In order to be awarded a DCJS Contract, every Bidder must comply with the requirements, rules and regulations outlined in Article 15-A.

Where it appears that a contractor cannot, after a good faith effort, comply with the M/WBE participation requirements, contractor may file a written application with DCJS requesting a partial or total waiver (M/WBE 101) of such requirements setting forth the reasons for such contractor's inability to meet any or all of the participation requirements, together with an explanation of the efforts undertaken by the contractor to obtain the required M/WBE participation.

Policy and Provisions

CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR BUSINESS PARTICIPATION OPPORTUNITIES FOR NEW YORK STATE CERTIFIED MINORITY- AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR MINORITY GROUP MEMBERS AND WOMEN

NEW YORK STATE LAW

Pursuant to New York State Executive Law Article 15-A and 5 NYCRR §§ 140-145 DCJS recognizes its obligation under the law to promote opportunities for maximum feasible participation of certified minority-and women-owned business enterprises and the employment of minority group members and women in the performance of DCJS Contracts.

In 2006, the State of New York commissioned a disparity study to evaluate whether minority and women-owned business enterprises had a full and fair opportunity to participate in state contracting. The findings of the study were published on April 29, 2010, under the title "The State of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises: Evidence from New York" ("Disparity Study"). The report found evidence of statistically significant disparities between the level of participation of minority-and women-owned business enterprises in state procurement Contracting versus the number of minority-and women-owned business enterprises that were ready, willing and able to participate in state procurements. As a result of these findings, the Disparity Study made recommendations concerning the implementation and operation of the statewide certified minority- and women-owned business enterprises program. The

recommendations from the Disparity Study culminated in the enactment and the implementation of New York State Executive Law Article 15-A, which requires, among other things, that DCJS establishes goals for maximum feasible participation of New York State Certified minority- and

women – owned business enterprises ("MWBE") and the employment of minority groups members and women in the performance of New York State Contracts.

Business Participation Opportunities for MWBEs

For purposes of this solicitation, DCJS hereby establishes an overall goal of 30% for MWBE participation, 25% for New York State certified minority-owned business enterprises ("MBE") participation and 5% for New York State certified women-owned business enterprises ("WBE") participation (based on the current availability of qualified MBEs and WBEs). A Contractor ("Contractor") on the subject Contract ("Contract") must document its good faith efforts to provide meaningful participation by MWBEs as subcontractors or suppliers in the performance of the Contract and the Contractor agrees that DCJS may withhold payment pending receipt of the required MWBE documentation. The directory of MWBEs can be viewed at: https://ny.newnycontracts.com. For guidance on how DCJS will determine a Contractor's "good faith efforts," refer to 5 NYCRR §142.8.

In accordance with 5 NYCRR §142.13, the Contractor acknowledges that if it is found to have willfully and intentionally failed to comply with the MWBE participation goals set forth in the Contract, such finding constitutes a breach of Contract and DCJS may withhold payment from the Contractor as liquidated damages.

Such liquidated damages shall be calculated as an amount equaling the difference between: (1) all sums identified for payment to MWBEs had the Contractor achieved the contractual MWBE goals; and (2) all sums actually paid to MWBEs for work performed or materials supplied under the Contract.

By submitting a bid or proposal, a bidder on the Contract ("Bidder") agrees to demonstrate its good faith efforts to achieve its goals for the utilization of MWBEs by submitting evidence thereof through the New York State Contract System ("NYSCS"), which can be viewed at https://ny.newnycontracts.com. Please note that the NYSCS is a one stop solution for all of your MWBE and Article 15-A Contract requirements. For additional information on the use of the NYSCS to meet Bidder's MWBE requirements please see the attached MWBE guidance, "Your MWBE Utilization and Reporting Responsibilities Under Article 15-A."

The Contractor will be required to attempt to utilize, in good faith, any MBE or WBE identified within its MWBE Utilization Plan, during the performance of the Contract. Requests for a partial or total waiver of established goal requirements made subsequent to Contract Award may be made at any time during the term of the Contract to DCJS, but must be made no later than prior to the submission of a request for final payment on the Contract.

The Contractor will be required to submit a Contractor's Quarterly M/WBE Contractor Compliance & Payment Report to the DCJS, by the tenth (10th) day following each end of quarter over the term of the Contract, documenting the progress made toward achievement of the MWBE goals of the Contract.

Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements

By submission of a bid or proposal in response to this solicitation, the Bidder/Contractor agrees with all of the terms and conditions of Appendix A – Standard Clauses for All New York State Contracts including Clause 12 - Equal Employment Opportunities for Minorities and Women. The Contractor is required to ensure that it and any subcontractors awarded a subcontract over \$25,000 for the construction, demolition, replacement, major repair, renovation, planning or design of real property and improvements thereon (the "Work"), except where the Work is for the beneficial use of the Contractor, undertake or continue programs to ensure that minority group members and women are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination

because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, disability or marital status. For these purposes, equal opportunity shall apply in the areas of recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, and rates of pay or other forms of compensation. This requirement does not apply to: (i) work, goods, or services unrelated to the Contract; or (ii) employment outside New York State.

The Bidder will be required to submit a Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises and Equal Employment Opportunity Policy Statement, Appendix O, to DCJS with their bid.

To ensure compliance with this Section, the selected Bidder will be required to submit with the contract an Workforce Utilization Report (Appendix J) identifying the anticipated work force to be utilized on the Contract and if awarded a Contract, will, upon request, submit an Equal Employment Opportunity Workforce Employment Utilization Compliance Report identifying the workforce actually utilized on the Contract, if known, through the New York State Contract System; provided, however, that a Bidder may arrange to provide such report via a non-electronic method by contacting: DCJSProcurement@dcjs.ny.gov.

Further, pursuant to Article 15 of the Executive Law (the "Human Rights Law"), all other State and Federal statutory and constitutional non-discrimination provisions, the Contractor and subcontractors will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed (religion), color, sex, national origin, sexual orientation, military status, age, disability, predisposing genetic characteristic, marital status or domestic violence victim status, and shall also follow the requirements of the Human Rights Law with regard to non- discrimination on the basis of prior criminal conviction and prior arrest.

Please Note: Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements may result in a finding of non-responsiveness, non-responsibility and/or a breach of the Contract, leading to the withholding of funds, suspension or termination of the Contract or such other actions or enforcement proceedings as allowed by the Contract.

Appendix M: EO 177 Certification

The New York State Human Rights Law, Article 15 of the Executive Law, prohibits discrimination and harassment based on age, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, pregnancy or pregnancy-related conditions, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, marital status, familial status, domestic violence victim status, prior arrest or conviction record, military status or predisposing genetic characteristics.

The Human Rights Law may also require reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities and pregnancy-related conditions. A reasonable accommodation is an adjustment to a job or work environment that enables a person with a disability to perform the essential functions of a job in a reasonable manner. The Human Rights Law may also require reasonable accommodation in employment on the basis of Sabbath observance or religious practices.

Generally, the Human Rights Law applies to:

- · all employers of four or more people, employment agencies, labor organizations and apprenticeship training programs in all instances of discrimination or harassment;
- · employers with fewer than four employees in all cases involving sexual harassment; and,
- · any employer of domestic workers in cases involving sexual harassment or harassment based on gender, race, religion or national origin.

In accordance with Executive Order No. 177, the Bidder hereby certifies that it does not have institutional policies or practices that fail to address the harassment and discrimination of individuals on the basis of their age, race, creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, marital status, military status, or other protected status under the Human Rights Law.

Executive Order No. 177 and this certification do not affect institutional policies or practices that are protected by existing law, including but not limited to the First Amendment of the United States Constitution, Article 1, Section 3 of the New York State Constitution, and Section 296(11) of the New York State Human Rights Law.

Contractor:

Ву:	
Name: ˌ	
Title:	
Date:	. 20

The Certification is to be submitted prior to contract award by all successful bidders on all Covered contracts and contract renewals.

Appendix P: Sexual Harassment Prevention Certification

Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-I bidder certifies that by submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that the bidder has and has implemented a written policy addressing sexual harassment prevention in the workplace and provides annual sexual harassment prevention training to all of its employees. Such policy shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements of section two hundred one-g of the labor law.

Bidders that do not certify will not be considered for award; provided however, that if the bidder cannot make the certification, the bidder provides a signed statement with their bid detailing the reasons why the certification cannot be made.

Bidder Business Name:
Signature:
Print Signatory Name:
Date:

Appendix Q: Certification Under Executive Order No. 16 Prohibiting State Agencies and Authorities from Contracting with Businesses Conducting Business in Russia

The Executive Order remains in effect while sanctions imposed by the federal government are in effect. Accordingly, Firms who may be excluded from award because of current business operations in Russia are nevertheless encouraged to respond to solicitations to preserve their contracting opportunities in case the sanctions are lifted during a solicitation or even after award in the case of some solicitations.

As defined in Executive Order No. 16, an "entity conducting business operations in Russia" means an institution or company, wherever located, conducting any commercial activity in Russia or transacting business with the Russian Government or with commercial entities headquartered in Russia or with their principal place of business in Russia in the form of contracting, sales, purchasing, investment, or any business partnership.

Is Firm an entity conducting business operations in Russia, as defined above? Please answer by checking one of the following boxes:

		1.	No, Vendor does not conduct business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16.		
		2.a	a. Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16 but has taken steps to wind down business operations in Russia or is in the process of winding down business operations in Russia. (Please provide a detailed description of the wind down process and a schedule for completion.)		
		2.k	o. Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16 but only to the extent necessary to provide vital health and safety services within Russia or to comply with federal law, regulations, executive orders, or directives. (Please provide a detailed description of the services being provided or the relevant laws, regulations, etc.)		
		3.	Yes, Vendor conducts business operations in Russia within the meaning of Executive Order No. 16.		
Firm	's bu	ısin	gned certifies under penalties of perjury that they are knowledgeable about the ess and operations and that the answer provided herein is true to the best of their and belief.		
F	irm	Na	me:		
١	Name	э, Т	itle:		
Signature:					

Appendix R: Workplace and Gender Based Violence Prevention Certification

Pursuant to State Finance Law §139-m, by submission of this bid, each bidder and each person signing on behalf of any bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies, and in the case of a joint bid each party thereto certifies as its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that the bidder has and has implemented a written policy addressing gender based violence and the workplace and has provided such policy to all of its employees, directors and board member. Such policy shall, at a minimum, meet the requirements of subdivision11 of section five hundred seventy-five of the executive law.

Bidders that do not certify will not be considered for award; provided however, that if the bidder cannot make the certification, the bidder provides a signed statement with their bid detailing the reasons why the certification cannot be made.

Every bid made to the State or any public department or agency thereof, where competitive bidding is not required by statute, rule or regulation may contain, at the discretion of the department, agency or official, the certification required above.

Bidder Business Name:		
Signature:		
Print Signatory Name: _		
Date:		

Exhibit A: DCJS Contract Award Protest Procedure

CONTRACT AWARD PROTEST PROCEDURE FOR CONTRACTS AWARDED BY THE DIVISION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

Section 1 Applicability

Section 2 Definitions

Section 3 General Requirements

Section 4 Protest Procedure

Section 5 Appeals

1. Applicability

Consistent with the provisions of the Procurement Lobbying Law (State Finance Law §139-j), it is the policy of the Division of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) to identify a sole Procurement Contact to receive all inquiries during an identified procurement period. DCJS will attempt to resolve inquires submitted to the identified sole Procurement Contact and will advise parties initiating such inquiries of the existence of this formal protest policy should the informal process fail to resolve the matter. Final agency determinations or recommendations for award will not be reconsidered by DCJS unless a formal written protest is timely filed according to the procedures specified below. The procedures below must be used which set forth the procedure to be utilized when an interested party challenges a contract award by DCJS. These guidelines apply to all contract awards by DCJS, including sole source procurements, single source procurements, emergency procurements and procurements awarded after a mini-bid process.

2. Definitions

- (a) "Offerer" mean an individual or entity who has submitted an offer in response to a solicitation for commodities or services issued by DCJS.
- (b) "Responsive Offerer" means a Bidder or Offerer meeting all of the minimum specifications and requirements as prescribed in a solicitation for commodities or services by DCJS.
- (c) "Successful Offerer" means the responsive Bidder or Offerer which receives written notification from DCJS indicating that its bid or offer has been accepted.
- (d) "Interested party" means a participant in the procurement process and those who would be bona fide participants but whose participation in the procurement process has been foreclosed by the actions of DCJS.

- (e) "Contract award" is a written determination from DCJS to an Offerer indicating that the DCJS has accepted its bid or offer (see State Finance Law §163(10)(a)).
- (f) "Emergency" means an urgent and unexpected requirement where health and public safety or the conservation of public resources is at risk (see State Finance Law §163(1)(b)).
- (g) "Mini-bid process" is an abbreviated bid and selection process for individual agency projects utilizing a list of prequalified vendors on a back drop contract
- (h) "Back drop contract" means a contract consisting of a pool of prequalified vendors who are eligible to participate in a secondary mini-bid award process, or other specified selection process.
- (i) "Single source" means a procurement in which although two or more Offerers can supply the required commodities or services, DCJS, upon written findings setting forth the material and substantial reasons therefor, awards the contract to one Offerer over the other (see State Finance Law §163(1)(h)).
- (j) "Sole source" means a procurement in which only one Offerer is capable of supplying the required commodities or services (see, State Finance Law §163(1)(g)).
- (k) "Protest" means a written challenge to a contract award by DCJS.
- (I) "Comptroller" means the Comptroller of the State of New York, as well as his or her designee.
- (m) "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Division of Criminal Justice Services, an agency of the State of New York, as well as their designee.

3. General Requirements

(a) Any solicitation issued by DCJS with respect to a contract award subject to these guidelines, including an Invitation for Bid, a Request for Proposal, or other similar document, shall provide notice that any interested party may protest the contract award. Such notice shall indicate that a protest of a contract award is to be filed with the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance at:

> Deputy Commissioner, Office of Budget and Finance New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services Alfred E. Smith Office Building, 10th Floor 80 South Swan Street Albany, NY 12210

The solicitation must include a copy of these guidelines or advise Offerers that a copy of these guidelines will be provided to the Offerer upon request.

(b) All Offerers shall be given written notice of the contract award or of a proposed award. Any unsuccessful Offerer, upon request, must be afforded an opportunity for a debriefing at least five business days prior to the date by which any protest must be filed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in any case where DCJS has reduced the time

period for the filing of a protest in accordance with section 4(a) of these guidelines, DCJS shall provide in the solicitation for a reasonable and appropriate method to debrief the Offerers in a timely manner. An Offerer's failure to request a debriefing in a timely fashion shall not cause an extension of the time period within which a protest must be filed.

- (c) A protest must be in writing and must contain specific factual and/or legal allegations setting forth the basis on which the protesting party challenges the contract award by the DCJS. A formal protest must include:
 - (i) a statement of all legal and/or factual grounds for disagreement with a DCJS specification or purchasing determination;
 - (ii) a description of all remedies or relief requested; and
 - (iii) copies of all applicable supporting documentation
- (d) Any interested party will be given the opportunity to participate in the protest procedure.
- (e) The DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance may, in his or her sole discretion, waive any deadline or requirement set forth in these guidelines, or consider any materials, submitted in writing, beyond the time periods set forth in these guidelines.
- (f) Where the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance deems appropriate, the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance may require the protesting party, the procuring Division of DCJS, DCJS staff involved in the procurement, the successful Offerer, or any other interested party, to address and/or submit further information with respect to additional issues raised by the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance review of the procurement.
- (g) Nothing herein shall preclude the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance from obtaining information relevant to the procurement from any other source, as he or she deems appropriate.

4. Protest Procedure

- (a) Any interested party may file a protest with the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance within ten business days from the date of the notice by DCJS of the contract award, except that:
 - (i) any protest concerning the terms and conditions of the solicitation or other matters that would be apparent to an interested party prior to the date set in the solicitation for the receipt of bids including but not limited to matters concerning errors, omissions or prejudice in the bid specifications or documents must be filed on or before the date set in the solicitation for the receipt of bids or proposals; and
 - (ii) where DCJS determines that sufficient circumstances exist DCJS may set forth a different time period for filing protests in the solicitation.

Any filing deadlines may be waived by the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance pursuant to section 3(e) of these guidelines. A formal protest must be submitted in writing to DCJS, by surface mail addressed to the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance pursuant to section 3(a) above, or, where permitted in the solicitation, by facsimile or e-mail transmission. The following statement must be clearly and prominently displayed on the envelope or package or header of electronic or facsimile transmittal: "Bid Protest of DCJS Solicitation (Reference Number)".

- (b) The DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance shall refer any protest either to an individual employee or group of employees of DCJS, or to an independent hearing officer who is not an employee of DCJS. The decision regarding to whom the bid protests is referred shall be in the sole discretion of the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance. Where the protest is referred to a DCJS employee or a group of DCJS employees, no such employee may have been actively involved in the procurement process being protested.
- (c) The DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance will provide a copy of any protest filed to the successful Offerer.
- (d) The DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance may summarily deny a protest that fails to contain specific factual or legal allegations, or raises only issues of law that have already been decided by the Courts or by the Comptroller of the State of New York.
- (e) Except where the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance summarily denies the protest, the procuring Division of DCJS shall file an answer to the protest within seven business days of the filing of the protest. The answer to the protest should address all the factual and legal allegations contained in the protest. A copy of the answer filed by the procuring Division of DCJS shall be delivered to the protester and the successful Offerer. The successful Offerer may, but shall not be required to, file an answer to the protest. Any answer by the successful Offerer must be filed with the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance no later than the date that the procuring Division of DCJS is required to file its answer. If the successful Offerer chooses to file an answer, it must deliver a copy of such answer to the procuring Division of DCJS and the protester, and its answer must contain an affirmation as to such delivery.
- (f) The protesting party may, but is not required to, file a reply to the answer of the procuring Division of DCJS and the successful Offerer. Such reply shall be filed with the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance no later than five business days after the date that the procuring Division of DCJS answer is filed. A copy of such reply shall also be delivered to the successful Offerer, and the protester's reply must contain an affirmation as to such delivery.
- (g) Upon the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance's own initiative, or upon request of any participant in the protest process, the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance may in his or her sole discretion act on an expedited basis, upon written notification to the interested parties, in which case the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance will advise all participants of filing deadlines.
- (h) During the time period in which a protest may be filed, or during the resolution of a pending protest, DCJS may negotiate terms and conditions of the contract with the successful Offerer. However, a contract will not be approved by the Office of the State Comptroller Bureau of Contracts before the expiration of the time period for filing a protest, or, if a protest has been filed, before the resolution of the protest.

- (i) The person or persons designated by the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance to consider the protest shall review all of the filings submitted by the parties, and the procurement record, and shall prepare a written recommendation to the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance, or his or her designee, addressing all of the issues that have been raised by the protest.
- (j) The person or persons designated by the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance to consider the protest shall determine whether, in addition to the review of the filings submitted by the parties and the procurement record, it is necessary to conduct a fact finding hearing. The person or persons so designated shall decide the level of formality of such a hearing.
- (k) The DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance, or his or her designee, may accept, modify or reject such recommendation.
- (I) In making his or her determination with regard to the protest, the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance, or his or her designee, may, in his or her sole discretion, consider any additional material and relevant information from any source relating to the allegations set forth in the protest.
- (m)All parties that have participated in the protest, as well as the original successful Offerer, shall be provided with a copy of the final determination of the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance, or his or her designee. The determination shall be made part of the procurement record.

5. Appeals

(a) The protest determination of the DCJS Deputy Commissioner of the Office of Budget and Finance shall be deemed a final and conclusive agency determination unless a written notice of appeal is received no more than five business days after the date the final protest decision is sent to the Offerer. Such notice of appeal must be filed in writing at the address set forth below:

Commissioner

New York State Division of Criminal Justice Services
Reference: Bid Protest of DCJS Solicitation (provide procurement reference number)
Alfred E. Smith Office Building, 8th Floor
80 South Swan Street
Albany, NY 12210

- (b) The Commissioner shall hear and make a final written determination on all appeals within ten business days of the date the Appeal is received. The Commissioner may designate a person or persons to act on his or her behalf.
- (c) A formal protest appeal may not introduce new facts unless responding to issues newly raised as a result of the final protest determination.